

Metropolitan Nashville and Davidson County, TN Metropolitan Council

Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, October 3, 2023	6:30 PM	Metropolitan Courthouse
•		•

Call to Order

The Metropolitan Council met in regular session on this date at 6:30 p.m. in the Metropolitan Courthouse.

The invocation was offered by Dr. Zainab Suara of the Islamic Center of Nashville, and the prayer was offered by Council Member Zulfat Suara.

Pledge of Allegiance

The Metropolitan Council gave the pledge of allegiance to the American Flag.

Roll Call

The roll was called and the following members were present during the progress of the meeting: Henderson, Suara, Porterfield, Evans-Segall, Allen, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain (41); Absent (0).

Message from the Mayor

Thank you. What a moment. Madam Vice Mayor, Council members. Each of you worked so hard to earn your spot here on the Metro Council, and I remember—I'll say fondly—my first meeting eight years ago. What I didn't know at the time was the ways in which my time on the Council would change my life and leave me with an abiding sense of gratitude for the chance to serve the city I love. I'm grateful to Vice Mayor Henderson for allowing me to speak with you tonight. And to the public who have entrusted us with the duty of leading and listening to the city, I am forever grateful. And to every Council member for whom this is your first meeting, a special congratulations. Now the work begins. I want to share with you a few highlights of some of the work we've already begun in the mayor's office.

Since September 14th, we formed three transition policy committees to help our office. They are looking closely at how Nashville grows, how Nashville works and how Nashville moves. Those three committees will explore nearly every aspect of Metro government's work, including the various plans many of us have worked on and contributed to. The first meetings of transition committees were at the Bellevue Library last Wednesday. I got to give them their charge, meet with each committee individually, and I feel very positively that we have some of Nashville's best minds—and hearts—as a part of these committees. The plan is that their recommendations will be back on my desk in mid-November, and I look forward to sharing those with you all.

Just over a week into the new administration, we've made terrific progress on the 15 fixes that I recommended during the campaign. They're all steps we could initiate on day one in office that would tangibly improve the lives of Nashvillians. And we have. We've started building a customer-focused government and are working to build an office of neighborhoods and other staff roles focused on how we create investments that reach all 35 council districts. One of our first hires has been a constituent

services coordinator who will be supporting the existing work of the hubNashville team. We want Metro to be an incredible customer service organization. I hope Council members will appreciate the improved condition of the city hall elevator as you start the new term. WeGo has initiated new cross-town transit service, including express bus service to Nashville SC games, directly as a result of things I and some of you fought for in this budget. And frequent network services have extended to 1:15am. We received a \$2 million dollar grant for violence intervention which will become a critical part of our community safety plan—and help us reduce gun violence in our city. Our transition committees, as mentioned above, are reviewing major city plans from the past several years to help us find every opportunity to get things done as quickly and as well as possible for the city. I've had some great feedback from the community. We started transparency initiatives in the mayor's office, including advisories about my public schedule and a media briefing we hope to do regularly. While I have directed the mayor's office staff to begin work on the 15 fixes, much of that work will be collaborative among all of us. When we work together, we get the best results.

I'm excited to present Dr. Bryan T. Fisher to this Metro Council for consideration as a nominee to the board of directors of Nashville General Hospital. Dr. Webb is here, and I want to be clear in my level of personal support to this institution. Our family is a Meharry family and knows full well the importance of Nashville General as both a teaching hospital and healthcare institution. As flu season begins and this year's vaccines have become available, in the next few days I plan to drop by Nashville General to get my flu shot. If you're covered under Metro's insurance plan there's no cost to you. If you visit nashvillegeneral.org, you'll see a Metro Healthcare Incentive. Just another benefit of being a Metro employee. I do encourage all Nashvillians to protect yourselves and our community by staying up to date on vaccines, including the flu vaccine.

This Metro Council is history-making. The first Black Council member in the first chair, re-elected as the first Muslim woman in the state of Tennessee. The first transgender elected official in the state of Tennessee. And a majority of you are women for the first time in Metro history. I was honored and delighted that so many of you joined us for the inauguration and swearing in on Saturday. Over the next few weeks, we'll be working to schedule one-on-one meetings with each of you so we can directly discuss your personal priorities and priorities you know will exist for your district or the city this term. Thank you again for welcoming me to a chamber that feels like home. I'll be right downstairs. I look forward to what we can accomplish together in the next four years.

I'll stop short of saying I wish I could join you for the whole meeting.

Adoption of Temporary Rules of Procedure

Council Member Sepulveda moved that the Council adopt as temporary rules of procedure those rules in effect at the end of the last term with an amendment to Rule 15 until permanent rules are adopted, which motion was seconded and adopted by a unanimous vote of the Council. Rule 15 is amended as follows: 15. Capital Improvements Budget

By November 15, members of Council shall submit all of their Capital Improvements Budget requests for the ensuing fiscal year to the Council Office for review by the Department of Finance, Planning Department, and implementing departments in order to identify costs, timeline and alignment with the General Plan. By January 4, a report of the reviewed requests shall be prepared by the Planning Department for review by the Budget and Finance Committee and Planning and Zoning Committee. Prior to the Capital Improvements submittal date established by the Director of Finance, the Budget and Finance Committee and Planning and Zoning Committee shall hold at least one joint meeting to prioritize Capital Improvement Budget requests on behalf of the Council in order to submit the requests in the format and timeline established by the Director of Finance for the development for the ensuing fiscal year. No Capital Improvements Budget requests shall be considered by the Council unless submitted in accordance with this rule

Elections and Confirmations

23-001 Community Review Board Appointment of Mr. Mark Wynn for a term expiring on October 31, 2026.

The Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee recommended the appointment. Council Member Sepulveda moved to confirm the appointment, which motion was seconded and adopted by a unanimous vote of the Council.

23-002 Hospital Authority Appointment of Dr. Bryan T. Fisher for a term expiring on September 6, 2028.

The Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee recommended the appointment. Council Member Sepulveda moved to confirm the appointment, which motion was seconded and adopted by the following roll call vote:

- Yes: Suara, Porterfield, Allen, Evans-Segall, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain
- No: Taylor

Abstain:

<u>23-003</u>	Tourism and Convention Commission Reappointment of Ms. Nealy Glenn for a term expiring on June 30, 2026.
	The Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee recommended the appointment. Council Member Sepulveda moved to confirm the appointment, which motion was seconded and adopted by a unanimous vote of the Council.
<u>23-004</u>	Tourism and Convention Commission Reappointment of Mr. Mark Hayes for a term expiring on June 30, 2026.
	The Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee recommended the appointment. Council Member Sepulveda moved to confirm the appointment, which motion was seconded and adopted by a unanimous vote of the Council.
<u>23-005</u>	Tourism and Convention Commission Reappointment of Mr. Howard Kittell for a term expiring on June 30, 2026.
	The Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee recommended a one meeting deferral. Council Member Sepulveda moved to defer the appointment, which motion was seconded and adopted by a voice vote of the Council.
<u>23-006</u>	Work Release Board Appointment of Ms. Shannon Musgrave for a term expiring on January 1, 2027.
	The Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee recommended a one meeting deferral. Council Member Sepulveda moved to defer the appointment, which motion was seconded and adopted by a voice vote of the Council.

Public Comment Period

Public
Comment
PeriodPursuant to Section 8-44-112 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, time is
reserved for public comment on legislative items appearing on this agenda.
Members of the public wishing to speak may sign-up on the Council Meeting
sign-up sheet at the Metro Clerk's Office counter on the day of the scheduled
meeting. Public Comment sign-up for Council meetings ends at 6:00 p.m. Public
Comment is limited to twenty minutes total at Council meetings and each
speaker is allowed up to two minutes to speak.

Members of the public who registered in advance provided comment on items on the agenda.

Resolutions Adopted on Consent

RS2023-1 A resolution appropriating \$45,500 from a certain account of the Community Safety Fund for a grant to Pass the Beauty for South Nashville Community Safety programs.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

RS2023-2 A resolution approving an application for a Courtroom Security grant from the Tennessee Administrative Office of the Courts, to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the State Trial Courts, to improve security in the Historic Metro Courthouse (HCH) and the Justice A. A. Birch building through the addition of security cameras and the securing of executive and judicial parking in the HCH parking garage.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee.

RS2023-3 A resolution accepting a Tennessee Highway Safety Office Recovery Court Enhancements grant from the Tennessee Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the State Trial Courts, to fund various Alcohol Countermeasures Highway Safety Projects.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee.

RS2023-4 A resolution approving the election of certain Notaries Public for Davidson County.

The resolution was approved by the Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee.

<u>RS2023-5</u> A resolution extending the time within which the Tax Incentive and Abatement Study and Formulating Committee shall study and submit its complete report and recommendations.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee.

RS2023-6 A resolution accepting the terms of a cooperative purchasing master agreement for pursuit vehicles and other special purpose vehicles with emergency upfitting for first responders.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

Metropolitan Council	Meeting Minutes	October 3, 2023
<u>RS2023-7</u>	A resolution accepting the terms of a cooperative purchasing for the purchase of mobile, anti-ram, anti-vehicle barriers for l Department of Transportation.	
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Com Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	nmittee and the
<u>RS2023-9</u>	A resolution appropriating a total of \$200,000 from the Office various nonprofit organizations selected to receive Communit Fund grants.	• •
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Com Public Health and Safety Committee.	nmittee and the
<u>RS2023-10</u>	A resolution accepting a Community Project Funding grant fro Department of Health and Human Services to the Metropolita acting by and through the Department of General Services, to construction of the third floor at 1354 Brick Church Pike for the Assessment Center to provide therapeutic pre-charge diversion address low level misdemeanor and youth offenses.	n Government, o fund the ne future Nashville
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Com Public Health and Safety Committee.	nmittee and the
<u>RS2023-11</u>	A resolution accepting a donation from Music City, Inc. to the Department ("NFD") of a 2023 Polaris ATV equipped with a n transport injured individuals.	
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Com Public Health and Safety Committee.	nmittee and the
<u>RS2023-12</u>	A resolution accepting an in-kind grant from Vanderbilt Unive Center to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and throug Nashville Fire Department, to provide training materials for pa participate in the Prehospital Airway Control Trial (PACT) trai	h the Metropolitan aramedics who
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Com Public Health and Safety Committee.	nmittee and the
<u>RS2023-13</u>	A resolution authorizing the Metropolitan Department of Law settle the personal injury claim of Marse Hanback against the Government of Nashville and Davidson County in the amount said amount to be paid out of the Self-Insured Liability Fund.	Metropolitan
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Com	nmittee.
<u>RS2023-14</u>	A resolution authorizing the Metropolitan Department of Law settle the personal injury claim of Edna Collier against the Me Government of Nashville and Davidson County for \$25,000, v be paid out of the Self-Insured Liability Fund.	etropolitan
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Com	nmittee.
<u>RS2023-17</u>	A resolution accepting a Victim Services State grant from the Department of Finance and Administration to the Metropolitar acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Police Depa administer funds to enhance the use of evidence-based strate support services to victims of crime.	n Government, rtment, to

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

RS2023-19 A resolution approving amendment one to a grant from the Tennessee Department of Finance and Administration to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Police Department, for funding for the Internet Crimes Against Children Unit.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

RS2023-22 A resolution approving an application for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant from the U. S. Department of Justice to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Police Department, for specialized training and equipment to ensure personnel maintain needed certifications for criminal investigation and crime reduction initiatives.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

RS2023-23 A resolution accepting an in-kind grant from the Friends of Shelby Park & Bottoms to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Parks and Recreation, to provide equipment and signage improvements to Shelby Park and Bottoms.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Facilities, Arts, and Culture Committee.

RS2023-24 A resolution accepting an in-kind grant from Vanderbilt University to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Parks and Recreation, to replace the current video board at the Centennial Sportsplex.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Facilities, Arts, and Culture Committee.

RS2023-25 A resolution approving a contract between the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Health, and Belmont University, to provide clinical experience opportunities for its nursing program students.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

RS2023-27 A resolution approving a contract between the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Health, and Family and Children's Service, to provide Affordable Care Act Navigators to screen individuals for health insurance eligibility at Health Department locations.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

RS2023-28 A resolution accepting a grant from the Friends of Metro Animal Care and Control to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Health, to provide funding for emergency medical care for shelter animals.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

Metropolitan Council	Meeting Minutes	October 3, 2023
<u>RS2023-29</u>	A resolution approving amendment two to a grant from the of County and City Health Officials (NACCHO) to the Metro acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Health, to agencies and implement activities that address the commu- related to drug overdose deaths.	politan Government, partner with
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Co Public Health and Safety Committee.	ommittee and the
<u>RS2023-30</u>	A resolution approving a grant from the Metropolitan Gover and Davidson County, acting by and through the Office of H to The Contributor, Inc. to provide Critical time Intervention that individuals are connected to supportive services that w maintaining housing and achieving self-sufficiency.	Homeless Services, Services to ensure
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Co	ommittee.
<u>RS2023-31</u>	A resolution authorizing the Metropolitan Government of Na County, acting by and through the Nashville Department of Multimodal Infrastructure, to enter into a Facility Encroachin CSX TRANSPORTATION, INC., to construct, use, and ma communications conduit and fiber in the railroad right-of-wa between 10th Avenue and 11th Avenue, in Davidson Count 2023M-037AG-001).	Transportation and nent Agreement with intain ay along Broadway
	The resolution was approved by the Planning Commission, Finance Committee, the Planning and Zoning Committee, a Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	
<u>RS2023-32</u>	A resolution supporting beautification of an underpass on M the Parkwood Neighborhood, under the Briley Parkway/Sta and approving an application for a license agreement betwe Government of Nashville and Davidson County and the Sta Department of Transportation.	te Route 155 bridge, een the Metropolitan
	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Contransportation and Infrastructure Committee.	ommittee and the
<u>RS2023-33</u>	A resolution approving a second amendment to Ordinance authorize the Director of Public Property Administration, or acquire by negotiation or condemnation, in the name of the Government, fee simple interest in the parcel of property lo Martin Road, for the purpose of realigning the intersection of with Crestmoor Road and Glen Echo Road. (Proposal No. 2	his designee, to Metropolitan cated at 2126 Abbott of Hillsboro Road
<u>RS2023-34</u>	The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Co and Zoning Committee, and the Transportation and Infrastr A resolution authorizing Nashville Urban Venture, LLC to an aerial encroachment at 607 Overton Street. 2023M-004EN-001.)	ucture Committee.
	The resolution was approved by the Planning and Zoning C Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	ommittee and the
<u>RS2023-35</u>	A resolution authorizing 125 11th Ave. Property Owner LLC install an aerial encroachment over Alley 225 ("Comers Alle No.2023M-008EN-001).	

Meeting Minutes

The resolution was approved by the Planning Commission, the Planning and Zoning Committee, and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

RS2023-36 A resolution authorizing 714-730 Main Street OZ, LLC to construct and install aerial encroachments at 730 Main Street (Proposal No. 2023M-014EN-001).

The resolution was approved by the Planning Commission, the Planning and Zoning Committee, and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

RS2023-37 A resolution approving a participation agreement between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, acting by and through the Metropolitan Department of Water and Sewerage Services, and The Clear Blue Company, to provide public sewer service improvements for Clear Blue's proposed development, as well as other existing properties in the area (MWS Project No. 23-SL-0013 and Proposal No. 2023M-038AG-001).

The resolution was approved by the Planning Commission, the Budget and Finance Committee, Planning and Zoning Committee, and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

RS2023-38 A resolution to amend Ordinance No. BL2022-1588 to authorize The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon additional sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, and to update the map and parcel information, for now two properties located at 110 Jo Johnston Avenue and 500 2nd Avenue North, also known as Metro Permanent Supportive Housing (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-105 and 22-SL-37, and Proposal No. 2023M-118ES-001).

The resolution was approved by the Planning Commission, the Planning and Zoning Committee, and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

RS2023-39 A resolution authorizing the Metropolitan Department of Law to compromise and settle the property damage claim of Whitney Drury against the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County in the amount of \$18,028.50, with said amount to be paid out of the Self-Insured Liability Fund.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee.

RS2023-40 A resolution authorizing the Metropolitan Department of Law to compromise and settle the property damage claim of State Farm Insurance as Subrogee of Melanie Martin against the Metropolitan Government for \$19,903.86, with said amount to be paid out of the Self-Insured Liability Fund.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee.

Having been unanimously approved by all of the appropriate committees, Council Member Sepulveda moved to adopt the Consent Agenda Resolutions, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (40): Suara, Porterfield, Evans-Segall, Allen, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain; No (0); Abstain (0).

Resolutions

RS2023-8 A resolution approving a grant contract by and between the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Office of Family Safety, and the Sexual Assault Center, for the provision of medical legal exams, therapy, and assist with the Safe Bar program all for the benefit of residents in Davidson County

who are victims/survivors of sexual assault.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee. Council Member Porterfield moved to adopt the resolution and that all members voting in the affirmative be listed as a cosponsor, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (40): Suara, Porterfield, Evans-Segall, Allen, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain; No (0); Abstain (0).

RS2023-15 A resolution approving amendment one to an Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) from the Tennessee Emergency Management Agency to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Office of Emergency Management, to subsidize the Emergency Management Program.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and recommended for withdrawal by the Public Health and Safety Committee.Council Member Porterfield withdrew the resolution.

RS2023-16 A resolution accepting a Statewide School Resource Officer (SRO) grant from the Tennessee Department of Safety and Homeland Security to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Police Department, to provide funding to place School Resource Officers in all Nashville Public Middle and High Schools.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee. Council Member Porterfield moved to defer the resolution, which motion was properly seconded. After discussion, Council Member Rutherford called for the previous question, which motion was seconded and failed by the following roll call vote: Yes (10): Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Weiner, Druffel, Johnston, Nash, Benton, and Rutherford; No (30): Suara, Porterfield, Evans-Segall, Allen, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Gadd, Preptit, Ellis, Sepulveda, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain; Abstain (0).

Council Member Porterfield moved to defer the resolution and rerefer it to the Public Health and Safety Committee, which motion was seconded and approved by the following roll call vote:

- Yes: Suara, Porterfield, Allen, Evans-Segall, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain
- No: Johnston

Abstain:

RS2023-18 A resolution accepting a Community-Based Traffic Safety Enforcement and Education grant from the Tennessee Highway Safety Office to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Police

Department, to continue the enhanced DUI enforcement initiative and target distracted driving and seatbelt enforcement.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee. Council Member Porterfield moved to adopt the resolution, which motion was properly seconded. Council Member Kimbrough moved to defer the resolution, which motion was seconded and failed by a voice vote of the Council. Council Member Porterfield moved to adopt the resolution, which motion was seconded and approved by the following roll call vote:

- Yes: Allen, Evans-Segall, Hill, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Rutherford, Styles, and Spain
- No: Kimbrough
- **Abstain:** Suara, Porterfield, Harrell, Welsch, Vo, Gadd, Preptit, Sepulveda, Lee, and Ewing
- **RS2023-20** A resolution approving amendment one to an intergovernmental agreement by and between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Police Department (hereinafter "MNPD"), and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for extra-duty police services.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee. Council Member Porterfield moved to adopt the resolution, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (38): Suara, Porterfield, Evans-Segall, Allen, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Cortese, Parker, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain; No (0); Abstain (0).

RS2023-21 A resolution approving an application for a Hot Spot Violent Crime Intervention Fund (VCIF) Targeted Community Crime Reduction Project (TCCRP) grant from the Tennessee Office of Criminal Justice Programs, to the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Nashville Police Department, to utilize funding for the formation of the PAL program to help build strong community relations and facilitate early intervention in the lives of at risk youths and to purchase equipment and increase staffing to better prepare officers to respond to violent crime incidents.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and deferred by the Public Health and Safety Committee. The resolution was deferred pursuant to Rule 8 of the Rules of Procedure of the Council.

RS2023-26 A resolution appropriating a total of \$355,200 from the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Health, to Neighborhood Health, Inc. and approving a grant contract by and between the Metropolitan Government, acting by and through the Metropolitan Board of Health, and Neighborhood Health, Inc. to provide homeless individuals with medical and dental services at two or more clinics in or near downtown Nashville.

The resolution was approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and the

Public Health and Safety Committee. Council Member Porterfield moved to adopt the resolution, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (38): Porterfield, Evans-Segall, Allen, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain; No (0); Abstain (1): Suara.

RS2023-41 A resolution renewing the support and commitment of the Metropolitan Council toward principles constituting a Community Covenant with the aim of creating opportunities for all residents of Metropolitan Nashville to thrive.

The resolution was approved by the Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee. Council Member Suara moved to adopt the resolution and that all members voting in the affirmative be listed as a cosponsor, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (40): Suara, Porterfield, Evans-Segall, Allen, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain; No (0); Abstain (0).

Late Resolutions

RS2023-42 A resolution honoring the life of Mr. Arnett H. Bodenhamer, Sr.

The resolution was approved by the Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee. Council Member Porterfield moved to suspend the rules of procedure to introduce a late resolution. Without objection, Council Member Porterfield moved to adopt the resolution and that all members voting in the affirmative be listed as a cosponsor, which motion was seconded and approved by the following vote: Yes (40): Suara, Porterfield, Evans-Segall, Allen, Hill, Kimbrough, Toombs, Gamble, Cortese, Parker, Capp, Benedict, Harrell, Hancock, Webb, Eslick, Evans, Bradford, Huffman, Gregg, Welsch, Vo, Cash, Kupin, Horton, Taylor, Weiner, Druffel, Gadd, Preptit, Johnston, Nash, Benton, Ellis, Sepulveda, Rutherford, Styles, Lee, Ewing, and Spain; No (0); Abstain (0).

Bills on Introduction and First Reading

BL2023-1 An ordinance approving the contract between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County ("Metro") and Net Tango, Inc., to provide website maintenance and development support for Metro's website, Nashville.gov, and for other Metro governmental agency or department websites, as needed, and which will replace the expiring contract between the parties (contract number 432814).

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Budget and Finance Committee and the Government Operations and Regulations Committee.

BL2023-2 An ordinance approving an agreement between The Community Foundation of Middle Tennessee, United Way of Greater Nashville, and the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by and through the Office of Emergency Management, to support disaster recovery efforts.

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered

at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Budget and Finance Committee and the Public Health and Safety Committee.

BL2023-3 An ordinance readopting the Code of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee, prepared by Municipal Code Corporation including supplemental and replacement pages thereof, containing certain ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before March 23, 2023.

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Rules, Confirmations, and Public Elections Committee.

BL2023-4 An ordinance approving a participation agreement between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, acting by and through the Nashville Department of Transportation and Multimodal Infrastructure ("NDOT"), and the Cheatham County Railroad Authority, for the rehabilitation and repair of the overhead railroad bridge crossing Albion Street, and an upgrade to Albion Street under the bridge; Prop No. 2023M-023AG-001.

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Budget and Finance Committee, Planning and Zoning Committee, and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-5 An ordinance to amend the Geographic Information Systems Street and Alley Centerline Layer for the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by renaming Due West Avenue, between Gallatin Pike and Fernbank Drive, to "Montague Way". (Proposal Number 2022M-003SR-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-6 An ordinance to amend the Geographic Information Systems Street and Alley Centerline Layer for the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County by abandoning a portion of North 18th Street unimproved right-of-way, (Proposal Number 2023M-009AB-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-7 An ordinance to amend the Geographic Information Systems Street and Alley Centerline Layer for the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County by abandoning a portion of Hillside Avenue right-of-way fronting Map 10505051100 (Proposal Number 2023M-005AB-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-8 An ordinance to amend the Geographic Information Systems Street and Alley Centerline Layer for the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County by abandoning a portion of Keller Avenue and Scott Avenue right-of-way at Southeast corner of Map 072064N90000CO (Proposal Number 2023M-012AB-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-9 An ordinance to amend the Geographic Information Systems Street and Alley Centerline Layer for the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County by abandoning Alley #1838 right-of-way between Cruzen Street and Winford Avenue (Proposal Number 2023M-006AB-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-10 An ordinance authorizing Rutledge Flats, LLC to install, construct and maintain aerial and underground encroachments in the right of way located at 622 3rd Avenue South (Proposal No. 2023M-002EN-001)

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-11 An ordinance authorizing James and Candace Higgins to construct and install aerial, underground, and above ground encroachments at 630 Division Street (Proposal No. 2023M-015EN-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-12 An ordinance approving a contract between the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County and FLW Southeast, Inc. to provide Siemens process instrumentation products, parts and repair services.

Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Budget and Finance Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-13 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to negotiate and accept permanent and temporary easements for the Meadowcrest Lane Stormwater Improvement Project for three properties located at 5611 and 5613 Meadowcrest Lane and 5522 Bon Air Circle, (Project No. 23-SWC-249 and Proposal No. 2023M-114ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-14 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon easement rights, for property located at 936 Riverside Drive, formerly a portion of Waters Avenue (Proposal No. 2023M-137ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-15 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for two properties located at West Division Street (unnumbered) in Hermitage, Wilson County, also known as the Canebrake Subdivision - Phase 1A (MWS Project No. 22-SL-19 and Proposal No. 2023M-112ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-16 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer main, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for two properties located at West Division Street (unnumbered) in Hermitage, Wilson County, also known as the Canebrake Subdivision - Phase 1B (MWS Project No. 22-SL-287 and Proposal No. 2023M-113ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-17 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer main, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for two properties located at 4421 and 4395 Maxwell Road, also known as Percy Cove Offsite, (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-112 and 22-SL-237 and Proposal No. 2023M-119ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-18 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for three properties located at 4421 and 4395 Maxwell Road, and Maxwell Road (unnumbered), also known as Percy Cove (Onsite), (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-113 and 22-SL-238 and Proposal No. 2023M-128ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-19 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for three properties located at 1269 Hunters Lane and Hunters Lane (unnumbered), also known as Heritage Creek Phase 5 (MWS Project No. 21-SL-35 and Proposal No. 2023M-126ES-001). The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-20 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept a new public sanitary sewer main, sanitary sewer manholes and easements for property located at Hunters Lane (unnumbered), also known as Heritage Creek Phase 6, (MWS Project No. 21-SL-45 and Proposal No. 2023M-134ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-21 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public water main, and to accept new public water mains, fire hydrant assembly, sanitary sewer manhole and easements, for property located at Tuggle Avenue (unnumbered), also known as Tuggle SP (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-144 and 23-SL-112 and Proposal No. 2023M-105ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-22 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public water mains, to accept the relocation of a fire hydrant assembly and new public water main, for property located at 4001 Cane Ridge Parkway, also known as Cane Ridge Parkway Water Main Adjustment (MWS Project Nos. 23-WL-44 and Proposal No. 2023M-102ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-23 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept a new public water pressure reducing station, new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for four properties located at 5866 Pettus Road and Pettus Road (unnumbered), also known as Cedars of Cane Ridge Phase 1 (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-78 and 22-SL-168 and Proposal No. 2023M-103ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-24 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes, adjustment of a sanitary sewer manhole and easements, for property located at 7211 Carothers Road, also known as Carothers Crossing Phase 5A, (MWS Project Nos. 21-WL-109 and 21-SL-264 and Proposal No. 2023M-093ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-25 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public water main, and to accept new public water mains, for property located at 3107 B Belwood Street, also known as Belwood Condominiums, (MWS Project No. 22-WL-121 and Proposal No. 2023M-110ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-26 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assembly and sanitary sewer manhole, for two properties located at 1015 and 1016 Gant Hill Drive, also known as Old Burkitt Road Phase 2 (MWS Project Nos. 23-WL-45 and 23-SL-106 and Proposal No. 2023M-109ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-27 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, and to accept new sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for eight properties located at Thompson Lane and Grandview Avenue (MWS Project No. 21-SL-267 and Proposal No. 2023M-115ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-28 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for two properties located at 2423 Buena Vista Pike and Buena Vista Pike (unnumbered), also known as Buena Vista Hearth and Haven (MWS Project Nos. 21-WL-35 and 21-SL-82 and Proposal No. 2023M-117ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-29 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer main and sanitary sewer manholes, for property located at Hart Lane (unnumbered), (MWS Project No. 23-SL-14 and Proposal No. 2023M-107ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-30 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer main, sanitary sewer manhole and easements, for three properties located at 1303, 1401 and 1425 Gallatin Pike, (MWS Project No. 23-SL-19 and Proposal No. 2023M-120ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-31 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer main, sanitary sewer manhole, fire hydrant assembly and easements, for two properties located at 717 B Old Hickory Boulevard and 5600 B Oakes Drive (MWS Project Nos. 22-SL-262 and 22-WL-125 and Proposal No. 2023M-123ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-32 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer main, and sanitary sewer manhole, for property located at 3124 Torbett Street, (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-34 and 22-SL-75 and Proposal No. 2023M-124ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-33 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing water and sanitary sewer mains and sanitary sewer manhole, and to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains and sanitary sewer manholes, for property located at 118 12th Avenue South, also known as Hyatt Caption Hotel, (MWS Project Nos. 23-WL-56 and 22-SL-279 and Proposal No. 2023M-121ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-34 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for two properties located at 1908 Lebanon Pike and Lebanon Pike (unnumbered) (MWS Project Nos. 21-WL-103 and 21-SL-240 and Proposal No. 2023M-122ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly

seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-35 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assembly, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for property located at 145 B Whitsett Road, also known as Whitsett Townhomes (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-124 and 22-SL-261 and Proposal No. 2023M-130ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-36 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for property located at Kemp Drive (unnumbered) (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-79 and 22-SL-169 and Proposal No. 2023M-104ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-37 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept a new public water main, for two properties located at 2202 and 2204 Batavia Street, also known as Batavia Street Water Extension, (MWS Project No. 23-WL-51 and Proposal No. 2023M-129ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-38 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public sanitary sewer main and sanitary sewer manhole, and to accept new public sanitary sewer main and sanitary sewer manhole, for property located at 1414 3rd Avenue North, also known as The Aster, (MWS Project No. 22-SL-263 and Proposal No. 2023M-131ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-39 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public sanitary sewer main, sanitary sewer manhole and easements, and to accept new public sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manhole, easements and the rehabilitation of two existing sanitary sewer manholes, for property located at 419 Gay Street, also known as NES Central Substation (MWS Project No. 23-SL-06 and Proposal No. 2023M-127ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the

Metropolitan Council	Meeting Minutes	October 3, 2023
	Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	
<u>BL2023-40</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Davidson County to abandon existing public water main a accept the vertical relocation of two sanitary sewer manh main and easement, for property located at 1050 Donelso as Old Hickory Community Center, (MWS Project Nos. 2 and Proposal No. 2023M-135ES-001).	and easement, and to oles, new public water on Avenue, also known
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upor seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be conside meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning C Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	ered at the next regular
<u>BL2023-41</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer manholes, for two properties located at 5400 and 5450 M Project No. 22-SL-278 and Proposal No. 2023M-108ES-0	ains and sanitary sewer It. View Road (MWS
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upor seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be conside meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning C Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	ered at the next regular
<u>BL2023-42</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for two properties located at 9 Log Road in Williamson County (MWS Project No. 23-SL 2023M-132ES-001).	ains, sanitary sewer 1853 and 9837 Split
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upor seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be conside meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning C Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	ered at the next regular
<u>BL2023-43</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Davidson County to accept new sanitary sewer force mai for six properties at Jones Circle, also known as the Hom (MWS Project No. 22-SL-115 and Proposal No. 2023M-1	n and appurtenance, les at Jones Circle
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upor seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be conside meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning C Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	ered at the next regular
<u>BL2023-44</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for three properties located at Broadmoor Drive, and 301 Ben Allen Road, also known a Apartments - Onsite (MWS Project No. 22-SL-137 and P 2023M-133ES-001).	ains, sanitary sewer 272 and 288 as Ben Allen Ridge
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upor seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be conside meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning C Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	ered at the next regular
BL2023-45	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of	of Nashville and

Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer manhole, for property located at 4000 Dr. Walter S. Davis Boulevard, also known as LIV Anthem, (MWS Project No. 23-SL-143 and Proposal No. 2023M-136ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-46 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, and to accept new public water, sanitary sewer and combined sewer mains, fire hydrant assemblies, sanitary and combined sewer manholes and easements, the relocation of one public fire hydrant assembly, and the conversion of combined sewer main from public to private, for property located at 2600 Jess Neely Drive, also known as Vanderbilt University Central Utilities Initiative Project (MWS Project Nos. 23 WL-10 and 23-SL-20 and Proposal No. 2023M-090ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-47 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to abandon existing public water mains, and to accept new water and sanitary sewer mains and sanitary sewer manholes, for property located at 701 South 6th Street, also known as Boscobel V and VI Development (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-130 and 22-SL-268 and Proposal No. 2023M-140ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-48 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new water and sanitary sewer mains, fire hydrant assembly, sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for property located at 3156 Anderson Road, (MWS Project Nos. 22-WL-139 and 22-SL-288 and Proposal No. 2023M-125ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.

BL2023-49 An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer manholes and easement, for property located at 401 East Williams Avenue, also known as Williams Retreat Phase 2 (MWS Project No. 23-SL-45 and Proposal No. 2023M-145ES-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next regular meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Committee and the

Metropolitan Council	Meeting Minutes	October 3, 2023	
	Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.		
<u>BL2023-50</u>	Davidson County to abandon existing sanitary sewer ma manholes and easements, and to accept new public san sanitary sewer manholes and easements, for four prope	nce authorizing The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and County to abandon existing sanitary sewer mains, sanitary sewer and easements, and to accept new public sanitary sewer mains, ewer manholes and easements, for four properties located at Caldwell lso known as Belmont Caldwell Hall 2 (MWS Project No. 23-SL-70	
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upo seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be consid meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	lered at the next regular	
<u>BL2023-51</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government Davidson County to accept new public sanitary sewer m manhole and relocation of a fire hydrant assembly, for p Sylvan Street, also known as 5th and Summer, (MWS P and 23-SL-136 and Proposal No. 2023M-138ES-001).	ain, sanitary sewer roperty located at 501	
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upo seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be consid meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	lered at the next regular	
<u>BL2023-52</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government Davidson County to abandon an existing public fire hydra accept a new public fire hydrant assembly, for property I Road (unnumbered), also known as Airpark Commerce 23-WL-61 and Proposal No. 2023M-142ES-001).	ant assembly, and to ocated at Ned Shelton	
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upo seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be consid meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	lered at the next regular	
<u>BL2023-53</u>	An ordinance authorizing The Metropolitan Government Davidson County to abandon existing public sanitary sev accept new sanitary sewer main and public sanitary sew properties located at 2401, 2403 A and 2403 B Grover S 23-SL-105 and Proposal No. 2023M-143ES-001).	wer manhole and to ver manholes, for three	
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upo seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be consid meeting. The bill is referred to the Planning and Zoning Transportation and Infrastructure Committee.	lered at the next regular	
<u>BL2023-54</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of N Davidson County, by changing from RS5 to R6-A zoning located at 2810 Georgia Ave, approximately 270 feet we N (0.26 acres), all of which is described herein (Propose 2023Z-074PR-001).	lashville and g for property est of 28th Ave	
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upo seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be consid available public hearing.	•	

Metropolitan Council	Meeting Minutes	October 3, 2023
<u>BL2023-55</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of I Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashv Davidson County, by changing from RS7.5 to R8-A zoning fo located at 424 McClellan Avenue, approximately 620 feet eas Meade Avenue (0.21 acres), all of which is described herein No. 2023Z-079PR-001).	rille and or property st of
	The bill was approved with conditions by the Planning Comm motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be next available public hearing.	
<u>BL2023-56</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of I Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and by changing from AR2a and SP to SP zoning on properties la 6423 and 6431 Pettus Road, and a portion of property locate Way, approximately 620 feet northeast of Nolensville Pike (2 permit 230 multi-family residential units and a fire station, all described herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-016-001).	Davidson County, ocated at 6419, ed at 8001 Warbler 8.71 acres), to
	The bill was approved with conditions, disapproved without by Commission. Council Member Rutherford offered Amendmen that it be adopted, which motion was seconded and approved the Council. Council Member Rutherford moved to pass the b and defer the bill to the January 2, 2024 public hearing with a Planning Commission, which motion was seconded and appr vote of the Council.	t No. 1 and moved by a voice vote of bill on first reading rereferral to the
<u>BL2023-57</u>	An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and re BL2023-56, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located 6431 Pettus Road, and a portion of property located at 8001 approximately 620 feet northeast of Nolensville Pike (28.71 a 230 multi-family residential units and a fire station, all of which herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-016-001). THE PROPOSED O REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.	at 6419, 6423 and Warbler Way, acres), to permit h is described RDINANCE
	The bill was approved with conditions, disapproved without by Commission. Council Member Rutherford moved to pass the and defer the bill to the January 2, 2024 public hearing with a Planning Commission, which motion was seconded and appr vote of the Council.	bill on first reading rereferral to the
<u>BL2023-58</u>	An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and by changing a Specific Plan for a portion of property locat Way, southwest of the terminus of Tanager Drive, zoned remove 1.45 acres of open space from the SP, all of which (Proposal No. 2017SP-087-004).	d Davidson County, ed at 8001 Warbler SP (1.45 acres), to
BI 2023-59	The bill was approved with conditions, disapproved without by Commission. Council Member Rutherford moved to pass the and defer the bill to the January 2, 2024 public hearing, which seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of	bill on first reading motion was

BL2023-59 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County,

by changing from SP to R40 zoning for property located at 6397 Pettus Road, at the northeast corner of Warbler Way and Pettus Road (0.96 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-049PR-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Council Member Rutherford moved to pass the bill on first reading and defer the bill to the January 2, 2024 public hearing, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council.

BL2023-60 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, b changing from RS5 to R6 zoning for property located at 2400 Buchanan Street, ϵ the northwest corner of 24th Avenue North and Buchanan Street and located within a Contextual Overlay District (0.26 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-077PR-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

BL2023-61 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from RS15 to R15 zoning for property located at 511 Glengarry Drive, approximately 440 feet southwest of Greymont Drive (0.57 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-098PR-001).

The bill was referred to the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

BL2023-62 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from AR2A and CS to SP zoning for properties located at 532 and 538 Bell Road, approximately 570 feet south of Murfreesboro Pike and located in the Murfreesboro Pike Urban Design Overlay District and Corridor Design Overlay District (5.25 acres), to permit a mixed-use development, all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-051-001).

The bill was approved with conditions, disapproved without by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

BL2023-63 An ordinance to authorize building material restrictions and requirements for BL2023 62, a proposed Specific Plan Zoning District located at 532 and 538 Bell Road, approximately 570 feet south of Murfreesboro Pike and located in the Murfreesboro Pike Urban Design Overlay District and Corridor Design Overlay District (5.25 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023SP-051-001). THE PROPOSED ORDINANCE REQUIRES CERTAIN MATERIALS TO BE RESTRICTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS.

> The bill was approved with conditions, disapproved without by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

BL2023-64 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and

Meeting Minutes

Davidson County, by changing from RS5 to R6-A for property located at 2406 Merry Street, approximately 385 feet east of 25th Avenue North and located within a Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit Overlay District (0.17 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-084PR-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

BL2023-65 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, By changing from RS5 to R6-A zoning for property located at 1229 John L Copeland Boulevard, approximately 170 feet south of Weakley Avenue (0.13 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-037PR-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

BL2023-66 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from IR to MUL-A zoning for property located at 5300 Centennial Blvd, approximately 700 feet northwest of 51st Ave. N. (3.42 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-068PR-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

BL2023-67 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from SP to RM15-A-NS zoning for properties located at 501 Cleveland Street and 895 N. 5th Street, at the northeast corner of N. 5th Street and Cleveland Street (0.28 acres), all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-083PR-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

BL2023-68 An ordinance to amend Title 17 of the Metropolitan Code of Laws, the Zoning Ordinance of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, by changing from CS to MUN-A-NS zoning for property located at 1829 Jo Johnston Ave., and from R6 to MUN-A-NS and RS5-A for property located at 513 19th Ave. N., approximately 130 feet north of the intersection of Pearl Street and Jo Johnston Ave. (0.42 acres) all of which is described herein (Proposal No. 2023Z-087PR-001).

The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Upon motion duly seconded, the bill passed first reading and will be considered at the next available public hearing.

Late Bills

Metropolitan Council	Meeting Minutes	October 3, 2023
<u>BL2023-69</u>	An ordinance approving a license agreement between Government of Nashville and Davidson County by and throug of General Services and The Salvation Army for use of storag 5244 Hickory Hollow Parkway, Nashville, Tennessee (Parcel (Proposal No. 2023M-039AG-001).	gh the Department e space located at
	The bill was approved by the Planning Commission. Council Member Styles moved to suspend the rules of procedure to introduce a late ordinance. Without objection, Council Member Styles moved to pass the bill on first reading, which motion was seconded and approved by a voice vote of the Council. The bill is referred to the Budget and Finance Committee and the Planning and Zoning Committee.	
Adiournment		

Adjournment

Upon motion duly seconded, the meeting was adjourned.